

## REDCOM BOARD OF DIRECTORS

**MINUTES** 

July 14, 2022 – @ 2:00PM Join by phone 1-323-886-6897 conference ID: 113 430 660 9# or Email <u>KT.McNulty@REDCOM-Fire.org</u> to request web link

Director's Present: Steve Akre – Chair Mark Heine - Vice Chair Bryan Cleaver - Secretary Jason Boaz Scott Westrope Dave Crowl

Others Present: KT McNulty Brenda Bacigalupi

Ken Reese Dean Anderson Evonne Stevens Nick Barber Brian Crabb Krista Butts Carly Sullivan Travers Collins Chad Costa James Salvante Ken Tasseff Steve Sutter Tambra Curtis Tony Gossner Nica Vasquez

Not Present: Sundari Mase

Notice: Copies of additional materials provided to the Board of Directors for information on agenda items are available at the REDCOM fire & EMS 9-1-1 Center.

- 1. <u>Call to Order Made by Steve Akre @ 1402</u>
- 2. <u>Approval of the Agenda</u> Motion to approve made by Scott Wesrope, Second Bryan Cleaver – Discussion – No Further comments – Approved unanimously
- Approval of the March 10th, 2022, REDCOM Board of Directors Meeting <u>Minutes. Agenda</u> – Motion to approve made by Dave Crowl, Second Bryan Cleaver – Discussion – No Further comments – Approved unanimously
- Approval of the April 4<sup>th</sup>, 2022, REDCOM Board of Directors Meeting Minutes. <u>Agenda</u> – Motion to approve made by Mark Heine, Second Scott Westrope – Discussion – No Further comments – Approved unanimously
- 5. Public Comment Period

In this time-period, anyone from the public may address the REDCOM Board of Directors regarding any subject over which the Board has jurisdiction, but which is not on today's agenda. Individuals will be limited to a three-minute presentation.

No action will be taken by the Board as a result of any items presented at this time.

None

- 6. New Business
  - a) Presentation of the FY 2021-2022 4<sup>th</sup> Quarter Director's Report. KT McNulty - ACE Accredited Center of Excellence Status Report - We continue to excel in the EMD. We did experience a bit of a dip in the last few months for EFD. We did pick that back up in April and May. We are doing much better and back on track. We did deploy a robust training schedule including one on one employee training catered to their needs specifically. We think that really improved whatever was going on with our compliance in that area.

**Staffing Update** - Technical Service and Operation Manager positions continue to be filled. Recruitment is still underway for the Executive Director position. All four of the supervisor's positions are filled. We have recently welcomed Jasmine Mitchell from San Francisco; we are extremely excited to have her. She is going to do great in the supervisor role. Jasmine replaced a supervisor that returned to the union. Fulltime position we have seventeen out of eighteen positions filled and they have several dispatchers in backgrounds right now we are hoping to hire one above our current vacancy and this is in anticipation of losing a full-timer going to school in August. Part-time positions are filled.

**Operational Updates** - Employees have been training for fire season preparedness including:

- Active status review
- SOP 28 SRA, MTZ and Borderline Vegetation Fire incidents
- Sop 18 Requesting Additional Resources
- Full IROC course issued again for the first time since the initial rollout
- Quarterly Wireless Emergency Alerting training

Thank you, Spencer, for helping us out.

**Technology Updates** – Genesis Pulse - I know this has been in this report for an exceedingly long time about 2 years now. We finally have it. In the dispatch center, we have monitors installed and we are starting to configure them as we speak. Really excited to have this product it is going to be huge in helping to locate callers and incidents as well as real-time traffic data.

REDCOM Communication Van is fully outfitted and ready for full use. We still do not have funding for the new chassis. The van still has not been painted or wrapped. We are still looking for resources for that. I am still hoping to find a grant for those costs.

**Call Trends** – For the last quarter, we are experiencing an uptick in 911 calls as represented by this purple column on the Director's Report. The uptick in the last 2 years. It is a little bit easier to see down here in the graph on the Director's Report. The orange bar is the uptick in our 911 call volume. You can see it is quite a bit.

**Average Call Duration** - Continue to be consistent with the previous two years.

Bryan Cleaver - KT, may I ask a question?

KT McNulty – Yes

Bryan Cleaver – The 911 call volume is that more indicative of our standard volume pre-COVID. I know that we did it during COVID and I do not think that graph marks out that far. We are not seeing an unusual spike compared to pre-COVID conditions, are we?

KT McNulty - I do not believe so. You are spot on with that assessment. People just were not calling for help during COVID. They did not want to go to the hospital. **Contractual Performance** - As far as our answer compliance. Answering the phone on 911 calls within 10 seconds 90% of the time. We continue to excel in that area. The orange line on the Director's Report is the standard. As you can see, we continue to be well above that standard. For the average rolling last 12 months we do that 96.13% of the time. As far as Call Pending to Call Dispatch, we continue to dispatch under 70 seconds or less consistently.

**Total 911 calls** - Our 911 call exceptions continue to be consistent in the amounts that we are requesting month to month.

That is the end of my report. I am happy to answer any questions.

Steve Akre – Thank you KT. First, I would like to open it up to the Board Members if there are any questions about the director's report.

Mark Heine – KT, I have a quick question. At the beginning of your report about the ACE Accreditation. When we have a deviation in performance like that. It does look like, a short blip there. Do the accreditation folks take any action against us? Do they suspend, delay us, or just put us on notice?

KT McNulty - If we are three months of non-compliance, they put us on a performance improvement plan. We have to submit a report on how we are going to turn that around. That is mostly where that training came from as part of that plan.

Mark Heine - Thank you.

Steve Akre - Thank you, Mark. Do any other Directors have any questions or comments about the Director's Report?

Scott Westrope - You saw a dip in the EFD times, and you apply some training that seemed to work. What was the cause of that? Do you know if is it something that we can prevent or improve upon in the future?

KT McNulty - It was individuals that were not following protocol. The individuals that were doing it were doing it in different areas. That is why it was one-on-one tailored training. It was just a blanket training issue to the whole staff. Part of the quality assurance program is really known to find out where those errors are occurring and identify whether this system a wide problem or an individual problem. Then after that, the training are tailored to help correct that problem. Now after that individual continues to make those mistakes after those trainings, than that becomes a decision to do the incorrect thing versus a training issue so then it would go a different route in the future.

Scott Westrope - Thank you.

Steve Akre - I have a follow-up to that and if I may. If we are not in compliance for a period of time and then we do some training and we get

back in compliance. If we then dip again. What is ACE's kind of program or procedure for dealing with this kind of ongoing performance issue?

KT McNulty – That is a very good question. I do not know what would happen if we relapsed again. We have never been on probation not sure what they call it exactly. But this is our first-time experience with this since we have gone live with EMD or EFD. After achieving ACE. That is a good question. I can follow up.

Steve Akre - Thank you. I do not ask that with the expectation that we are going to do that. I trust that the focus training and identification of the issues will be successful and are showing that right now but simply curious more than anything. Thank you.

Any other comments or questions from the directors?

I have one other comment or question and that is in regard to the chassis and painting funding. Have we connected with the Department of Emergency Management for any Grant opportunities or funding requests that you might be able to go through them for that service? I know that Chris and Jeff put out a number of Grant opportunities and quite honestly, I have not looked at it through that lens. I just want to make sure that we were exploring all and any opportunities.

KT McNulty- I do have an open dialogue with Jeff and Chris regarding any grant opportunities that would benefit REDCOM. I monitor those emails and also monitored the eCivis program that usually comes about once a week in a roll-up of Grant opportunities. You are aware that we brought on the Grant consultants. Once I identify something that seems like a good fit for REDCOM I run it past them, and they let me know whether we are qualified or not. So far, I think it has been about a year and we have had very little Grant opportunities that apply to us because of our JPA structure. I do have my finger on that pulse.

Steve Akre - Thank you KT. If there are no further comments from the Directors. I will open it up to the public. If there are any comments from the public on the Fiscal year 21-22 quarter-four Directors Report.

KT McNulty – None at this time.

Steve Akre - Thank you, KT, for that report, and we will move on.

 b) Discussion and direction on end-of-term Directors for and end-of-term for Officers. -KT McNulty  Seat 2 – Fire District or Department by member agency majority vote. Section 6ai of the JPA: Three (3) of the seven (7) Directors shall be from separate member agencies that provide fire protection services. One (1) of these three (3) Directors shall be from the member agency with the highest call volume. "Call Volume'<sup>1</sup> means the annual total number of emergency requests for service within the member agency's jurisdiction. The other two (2) Directors shall be selected from separate member agencies by a majority vote of all member agencies, or their designees, providing fire protection services. At no time shall

there be fewer than one (1) Director nor more than two (2) of these three (3) Directors from member agencies that are cities that provide fire protection services.

KT McNulty – First of all apologies, the end of terms I let that timeline elapse. We are actually overdue for the end of term, and I just wanted to reassure you that I have developed a system to make sure that this does not happen in the future. We really did not have a good mechanism in REDCOM to keep track of the expiration of the term or who was occupying which seat. Over the last two weeks, we had to do a bit of research to figure out whose terms were up and who was occupying which seats. We have that all sorted out now. We will have sort of flags in the future when we start getting close to end of the terms/office. We will have that information readily available. Seat two which is currently occupied by Akre is up and this is one of three seats that a Fire Protection Agency can occupy. It cannot be more than two city departments occupying those three seats. We already have Westrope and Boaz occupying. We are looking for a nominee from a District that is not a city. What I would like to do if the Board Members are in the favor. I would like to manage it the same way that we managed Boaz election. Ask for nominee's and send out ballots to all the member agencies.

Steve Akre - I think that makes sense to me but certainly open it up to the rest of the Board for any discussion or comments.

KT McNulty - Then we welcome that person in the October meeting.

Steve Akre – Just to clarify. You would put it out to the member agencies for nominations and then once nomination period has closed. Then it would go out again to the member agencies for a vote between anyone that was nominated.

KT McNulty – Yes, and I would CC you on all those emails and I would also look to the Board Members to establish a deadline for each of those steps.

Bryan Cleaver- Hearing no further discussion. I would make a motion that we do approach the member agencies for nominations and then an election

based on those nominations. KT, can I ask is Chair Akre eligible for reelection?

KT McNulty – Yeah, I do not see any language extending that, not for this seat.

Bryan Cleaver – I will keep my motion. Dave Crowl will second the motion

Steve Akre – Motion and a second. Any further discussion from Board Members?

Jason Boaz - I am just wondering are we going to take as many nominations as possibly? Then whoever gets the most votes gets the seat. Is that how it works? Are there rules on how many we take and get majority of the votes?

KT McNulty – It is majority vote of Member Agencies.

Jason Boaz – I do not foresee this being a problem. If we get multiply nominations, it might be difficult to get a majority votes.

Steve Akre – I would have to dive a little bit deeper and maybe Tambra could weigh in on this. If there were three nominees and again this is going to need to be really specific. It needs to be from the Fire Protection District and not from a city or other entity as part of the JPA. If there were three nominees and no one got over 50% would the leading vote be the successful one or would that need to then go to a runoff, and somebody needs to actually get 50+ 1 to be elected.

Jason Boaz - If I wanted to nominate Steve Akre, I could, or does it have to be the member agencies nominating their own person?

KT McNulty - It does not specify how the nomination accrue.

Steve Akre – If I remember correctly Jason last time, we nominated you to continue serving from the board.

Jason Boaz - That was my recollection as well.

Tambra Curtis - We have not had a problem in meeting the majority requirement in the past. Maybe it has been luck. We can always re-visit if that happens.

KT McNulty - Thank you Tambra.

Jason Boaz - I think it is important to put it out there so that we know if other

member agencies want to have a representation on the Board. I personally would like to see Chief Akre stay on it, but I am also opened to hearing if other people are interested. I guess let us move forward. In the motion do you need deadlines or are we going to figure that out after the fact?

KT McNulty - I was hoping that you could establish what deadlines you would like to see.

Steve Akre - I will put out in a discussion. I think it would be really helpful if we can wrap up the process of the elections certainly prior to our next regularly scheduled meeting in October. I do not think that is an unrealistic timeframe, but you know the sooner we have some certainty about who will be going into those spots the better.

Jason Boaz - It is all going to be done by email?

Kt McNulty - Yes

Bryan Cleaver - KT, is this a process by which you as a Director runs or is this process by which the District Chiefs will establish their own nominees and those will be voted upon? The reason why I am asking, is do I need to ratify my motion?

KT McNulty - Anybody can nominate anyone. It does not matter to me how that process happens. My thought is that the nomination is emailed directly to Akre and myself.

Bryan Cleaver – Hearing that the motion would stand, and the District Chiefs would reach out to achieve nominations on behalf of the District Chiefs.

KT McNulty - That works.

Bryan Cleaver - Is that ok with the District Chiefs.

Steve Akre - Can I ask a clarifying question? I think we might be on two different tracks here. I think this is a General Seat if I am not mistaken. The nominee has to come from a representative of a Fire Protection District.

KT McNulty – Yes.

Steve Akre - If I understand it correctly and please let me know. I just want to make sure I am. This is something that goes out to all of the member agencies of our JPA for a call for nominations and then a subsequent election of those nominees. This is not something that is just for the Fire Districts to decide, correct?

KT McNulty – That is correct.

Jason Boaz - The seat does not specify it has to be a district. It does because we already have two city agencies on three of them are from fire but only two cities. So, it needs a district. It is reasonable to bring it to the District Chiefs, but it sounds like it needs to the entire membership as well. It needs to be a Fire Agency that is not a city. In this case at this time, it needs to be District. Is that correct KT?

Kt McNulty - Yes

Steve Akre – If you would be so kind, Bryan. Not to cut off any other discussion. I think what would be helpful for KT is to maybe amend your motion to include some timelines, so we have both the nomination period and election completed prior to our October 13<sup>th</sup> Board Meeting.

Bryan Cleaver - I will amend my motion to suggest that staff reach out via email from all member agencies to obtain nominations for the seat and that be concluded by August 1st and then an additional reach out via email to all member agencies with an election process for all members to vote on approval represent that seat by August 15<sup>th</sup>. Thereby allowing the Board to adopt that in the October meeting.

Jason Boaz - Second

Steve Akre – Any further discussion? If not let us call for a vote.

Roll call vote all in favor Motion to approve made by Bryan Cleaver, Second Jason Boaz - Roll Call – Discussion – No Further comments – Approved unanimously

## ii Seat 7 – Majority vote of other 6 Directors.

Section 6iv of JPA: The seventh Director shall be elected by a majority vote of the other six (6) Directors. Said vote shall occur no later than eleven (11) months prior to the expiration of the seventh Director's term or the sitting seventh Director shall be deemed to have been reappointed.

KT McNulty - Seat seven is the very unique seat. It could be anyone at large in the community. However, it has very specific language. That if we do not start this process 11 months prior to the end of term. That director is deemed to have been reappointed. That seat is currently occupied by Heine. Mark Heine would like to continue or pass the torch?

Mark Heine - I would like to continue.

Jason Boaz - I am just curious why 11 months prior. What was the reasoning behind that? Does anybody have historical knowledge on that? It seems kind of random.

KT McNulty - It does seem very random to me. Maybe it is just because the seat is so unique and who it could be. Maybe they want more forethought to who lands there.

Jason Boaz – The other thing the list you were talking about. Is that something you could supply to the Directors, so we have knowledge of who is occupying what seat, how long they have been there and how long the term is.

KT McNulty – Yes. Previously it was just a list and the officer moved around on the list and seats were really not identified. It was really difficult to track. Now going forward should be much easier to read.

Jason Boaz - It has the officers on there as well?

KT McNulty – Yes

Jason Boaz – Perfect.

Steve Akre – First and foremost, thank you Mark for not only for your service that you have done so far, but your willingness and interest in serving into the future. We really value your position on the Board and your participation and input. Second to that. KT, do we need to do anything more formally as a Board to approve that continuation in that position?

KT McNulty - I do not believe so, the way it is written it is very clear that he is just automatically reappointed.

Steve Akre - Ok good enough. Then will move on. Thank you, Mark, and congratulations that probably was the easiest reelection you have ever had.

Jason Boaz - All the seats are four years, correct?

KT McNulty – Yes. Bryan just clarified that there are seats such as his seat, City of Santa Rosa, and Public Health that do not have turnover.

Steve Akre – Correct, Thank you, Bryan.

iii Discussion and action to approve holding Officer elections during the October 13<sup>th</sup>, 2022, meeting.

Steve Akre – KT, is there anything more than what the title indicates?

KT McNulty - I just thought that if we do not know who that other Board member is. That we should hold off unless you just want to continue with who is currently in seat.

Steve Akre - I will leave that up to the Board. It seems to make sense, but certainly open for discussion.

Bryan Cleaver – KT, for that second available seat. I am going to try to provide some historical perspective. Though it has been a long time and I am getting old, but for that second seat was that the position when REDCOM was instrumental in our early development implementation, and we aligned with the county CAO position and of course, I go back to Chris Thomas. There was a tremendous amount of value and maybe we have evolved to the point that we do not necessarily need to rely upon that position. I would offer it to the group to contemplate given that position and having that held by the CAO office. It gave us a tremendous amount of leverage and support. Particularly when you look at the loans for the expansions by the county. When you look at their advocating on REDCOM's behalf in the Casino negotiation project at Graton. Do we need to have a discussion at this point KT about the value of that position and whether the organization needs that level of support? KT, if I am hitting you prematurely, please let me know, but that was an integral part of our development, growth, and stabilization.

KT McNulty - I do recognize how valuable it was having Chris Thomas on the Board. He did a lot for REDCOM. Perhaps in the Interim next four years we can establish a relationship as a liaison until we can consider putting someone back in that position. Open for discussion.

Steve Akre – Bryan that is a good question and you know from my experience being on the Board now for almost six years and having worked with Chris Thomas as a member of this Board. Chris was incredibly valuable to this Board and what we have been able to do with REDCOM. I kind of asked the same question in my own mind as well. You know seeing structurally the value of having someone in the CAO office that is an integral part of REDCOM versus was that because Chris Thomas is who Chris Thomas is and he brought that level of knowledge participation commitment to things. I just do not know whether we have got that right now. We just solidified that Chief Heine is in that position for the next four years. I think as we go forward that is a good question. I also appreciated KT's comment about establishing a liaison with the county CAO's office might be our best step. That is something we are trying to do on many fronts right now and so being able to have a point person from the CAO's office that deals with public safety generally might be something that we push forward to the CAO and maybe even the supervisors.

Bryan Cleaver - I appreciate that, Steve. I was not looking to unseat Chief Heine. I think he does a good job representing that position and as we will probably talk about later in this meeting. He also has the ear of the CAO's office and can represent us in the best possible way. The two positions we are talking about are the earlier mentioned for the non-city Fire provider is to have their nominees and Mark Heine has as gracefully accepted the extension of his position which I think is great. I also appreciate the idea of having a liaison in a close connection. We are going to come into some challenging fiscal times where we may have to look to the County and rely on the County. I think we need to be poised to have the right players at the table to allow for that. It may be expansion, or negotiations with Sheriff's Department. That was no way to attempt to slide Chief Heine. It was to really to acknowledge Chris's roll and his ability to influence was more critically important in the early development and implementation of REDCOM and maybe we have evolved to that point. I just wanted to raise awareness to the Board. We really do well when we reach out with adequate representation that can encourage our mission and our message.

Steve Akre - I agree. I think we all know that any of us that deal with those issues that you just mentioned funding especially as we get to kind of challenging fiscal times as well as you know what we can do to best serve our communities going forward. As an agency, as a JPA, that serves the very vast majority of this County. Having a direct liaison with the County Administrators' office is incredibly valuable. I think that is something we can look to try and foster. I am hearing support from the Board. We can present our conversations and as you mention Chief Heine is very well-connected with the CAO's office and supervisors. He has the support of the REDCOM Board, to say you know we are wanting a liaison as well.

Jason Boaz – Perhaps what we should do then is put it as an agenda item for a future meeting to have a discussion about whether or not if we want a liaison or expand the Board.

Steve Akre – Expanding the Board is a much bigger question. That would give us 8 Directors which then is potentially problematic when we look at voting. Not that this Board has a history of split votes very often and our Boards are designed with odd numbers.

Jason Boaz – I thought we were discussing the approving holding officers' elections during the meeting and now we are talking about liaison to the County. I just felt like we are getting off-topic a little bit. I think we should just do a discussion about the liaison on the County. We should agendize that discussion about how we want to do that and fill that position.

Tambra Curtis – That is a good idea.

Steve Akre – Thank you, Jason.

Jason Boaz – What did we decide about item number three?

Steve Akre - I think that is still on the table right now. We have not had a motion. We have kind of taken a little bit of a tangent with the discussion. I am still looking for a motion and a second to hold officer elections during the October 13th meeting.

Jason Boaz – Just to be clear. I do not disagree with anything we are talking about. I am happy that Chief Heine is staying in the seat. I totally agree with what Bryan is saying. I just felt that the item we were discussing was officer elections. That is why I suggested maybe we bring that up as a separate agenda item so we can discuss it properly. The officer elections KT can you remind me who holds what and how long the terms are and what the bylaws say about that?

KT McNulty - It is a two-year term for officers. Akre is currently the Chair and Heine is the Vice Chair.

Jason Boaz - The only action we really want is to put that on the agenda for the October meeting to have a discussion and vote for Officer Elections.

KT McNulty – Yes. It was already due for this meeting. That is why I agendized it the way I did. This way we could address it in October after we have that new person in Chair.

Jason Boaz – Ok. I will make a motion hold Officers elections during our October 13, 2022, meeting. That will be my motion.

Bryan Cleaver – I will second that, as I agree that my prior motion also encompass that, Jason. Appreciate it.

Steve Akre – There is a motion and a second. I will open it up for any Board discussion. Hearing none.

Motion to approve made by Jason Boaz, Second Bryan Cleaver – Discussion – No Further comments – Approved unanimously

c) Update and discussion on Tiered Response in Sonoma County

Steve Akre -We will have a Sub Item to address after we have the update and discussion.

KT McNulty – We have Ken Tasseff on the line today to provide a brief overview and update on where we are at with Tiered Response in Sonoma County. When he is done, I would like to discuss the impacts on REDCOM. Ken Tasseff – Power Point up. It is a very brief PowerPoint and then will discuss where we are at overall. We started the committee Tiered Response Task Force. The first meeting was held May 18, 2022. We went To EMCC and started with asking for representatives from EMCC to join Dr. Luato, Medical Director then we planned on supplementing it with other agencies. We have five members appointed by EMCC along with Bob Norbom who has a standing invitation to be on or to join us in that committee at any time. In addition, we have two members representing Santa Rosa Fire, one member representing REDCOM that is KT and two members representing the Base Hospital that would be Dr.Omar Ferrari and Erin Olson, and three members that were invited by are DHS Director to join that would be Art Ceja, Chief Gossner, Tuck Beirbaum. We have various LEMSA staff that joined us. I act as a moderator, not as a subject matter expert. Then we have various guests that join us from time to time mostly supporting data sharing and analysis. The task force came up with an overall objective of what we are trying to achieve. The objective is to advise Dr. Luato first and foremost on how to implement Tiered Response and be able to make sense for the citizens that is safe and in fact, recognizes the impact to stakeholders and agencies within Sonoma County. We came up with a work plan, what are the things we need to do to achieve results and get Tiered Response implemented at least as a minimum. First it is to work on that draft Memo, incorporate the stakeholder input, and have that approved by Dr. Luato. We are pretty much through that process. That was one of first things that we did as a committee. It is a living document and as we get more data and learn more. We are going to revisit the document. To make sure it is consistent with the findings and the decisions that Dr. Luato is going to make moving forward. Second, is going to be identifying impacts on local agencies, private providers, and other stakeholders. Start talking about what mitigations we can put in place to offset those impacts and talk about a work plan. To implement those mitigations. We need to continue to have ongoing discussion on that and will have a robust discussion on that at next meeting on that. The third item on our work plan is to identify initial set of determents that will be eligible for BLS response. Will do a lot of that through work plan number item number four. Which is data collection and looking at the data that is out there that we have, and we could make a discussion on what determents would be eligible. As part of that we have created a data subcommittee that is looking at these things. Initially we have been looking at determinants and saying do these makes sense based on a Q&A and some other things. Dr. Luato has been instrumental in trying to identify what those are, but above and beyond that we are also looking at baseline feedback from committee members or subcommittee members. We are looking at what determinants are going as BLS at this time. What is working with those, what is not working, what are risks and so on as we get that data in and analyze it, we are sharing it with greater subcommittees Task Force of course Dr. Luato is part of that

discussion and that is ongoing. That subcommittee meets about once every week and the greater Task Force meets every two weeks. The last item is trying to identify issues to be resolved with your REDCOM Board. Map out path forward as we do that and keep you informed about what is going on with the implementation of Tiered Response. My last slide just said we have had five-Tiered Response Task Force meetings all of them have been focusing on all five of those work plan Items. Where we have had four Data subcommittee meetings that we are focusing primarily on Data analysis and recommendations to the Task Force and of course when I say to the Task Force it is then up to Dr. Luato who makes the final medical discussion on the Tiered Response issues. With that, I can answer any questions.

Steve Akre – Ken that you for that update. I will open it up to Board with any comments first or questions for Ken.

Steve Akre - Ken I have one comment. I know this is a brief PowerPoint and it is not meant to be all-inclusive. I did not see this is the PowerPoint. I trust that the Task Force is and I know Dr.Luoto certainly has the forefront. But I did not see anything about the impacts on our community or patients as an impact that was being looked at within the work plan. That is something as providers of service that is really critical for us and keep it at the forefront. That everybody is reminded of that and keep that as a central focal point as we try to deliver the best EMS system we can within the county.

Ken Tasseff – That is the focal point of all this. As we look at Data and everything else, we are looking at what is the impact on patients, what are the risk to the patients out there. That is our single biggest thought as we make recommendations to Dr. Luato and of course as the Medical Director that is the biggest concern as well. Rest assured that is our primary focus.

Steve Akre – Thank you, appreciate that reassurance. I would just maybe gently suggest that in any of the outreach that the Task Force continues to do to other stakeholders, that maybe that is identified a little bit more clearly.

Ken Tasseff - Thanks appreciate that input.

Steve Akre - Anybody else from the Directors have any comments/questions? In hearing none and not seeing none. I would like to open this one up to the public for any public comment on the update that Ken gave us. Again looking for the raised hand feature if anybody has any comments or questions.

KT McNulty – No hands raised.

Steve Akre - With that thank you, Ken.

i. Discussion on appointing an additional REDCOM representative to the Tiered Response Task Force

Steve Akre - I will take the lead on this one. This is related a lot to our next item under old business. Recognizing KT that you are wearing two hats right now and well definitely related they are separate and distinct at least as far as I am concerned as a REDCOM Board Member. I think that in looking at the process in terms of developing a new EMS policy for our county and our response. A missing component I think of the Task Force is having a representative from the DOAG. As I understand was reached out to initially by Ken and others for consultation on this policy. We rely on the DOAG very heavily as the Board, as our subcommittee our policy guidance team. What my desire in putting this on the agenda is to suggest that as a Board that we ask and appoint a representative to the Task Force from the DOAG because there are subject matter experts on the implementation of policy. I would open up to the Board for thoughts, discussion, and even potentially a motion.

Jason Boaz – I think that is a good idea. Did you have someone in mind? Can you make a motion as the chair?

Steve Akre - I would prefer not to be the one to make the motion. I think it tends to be better if the Chair does not make the motion, but I am not opposed to it.

Mark Heine - I make the motion that we appoint a DOAG representative to that committee.

Ken Tasseff - I apologize for interrupting. If I could possibly make a recommendation and a motion. Appointing a representative to the Task Force given that the Task Force is essentially a DHS Department of Health Services entity. May I recommend that it is a recommendation to the Director of DHS that she add a DOAG member and then give that recommendation from that who that might be if accepted?

Steve Akre – I appreciate that, I guess that makes a clarifying question for you with the Task Force makeup. There was a representative specifically from REDCOM but is there also a representative as the AMR Regional Director on that Task Force?

Ken Tasseff – No, there is not. KT acts as a representative from REDCOM.

Bryan Cleaver - In the interest of discussion and not yet in the interest of a motion. I think we have learned through the conversations in the TIER response Task Force. That the greatest implications probably reside within Chief Westrope and Chief Heine's jurisdictions. I do not know that it is necessarily a member of the DOAG as much as it is ensuring that both

Sonoma County Fire Districts and Santa Rosa Fire have adequate representation at those meetings. I would be willing to make that motion if the group agrees, but I will leave that to discussion.

KT McNulty – I believe that both agencies are already represented in that committee.

Bryan Cleaver – I agree KT. Is that information in Chief Heine and Chief Westrope's opinion from your representative bilateral and coming back to you and you able to guide your representatives on those groups or do we need to take the more evasive move?

Mark Heine – I appreciate the question, Bryan. I am comfortable with Sonoma County Fire District representation there and our input liability. Let my folks go through that process. I think there is a need for a presence that is particular to a hat from REDCOM. You are correct in the interpretation of how the agencies are impacted, but I also think it has potential. KT you will have to tell this. It has a potentially significant impact on REDCOM in one way or another. I think it still bears having somebody representing REDCOM. Whether that is a member of our DOAG committee or another Board member. I will leave that up to the president on how he wants to do that. Based on what you said, Ken and Steve. I am willing to amend the motion to be REDCOM Board of Directors request a seat from Director Rivera on the committee and leave it up to our president as to who he would like to suggest to move forward to Director Rivera's for that.

Jason Boaz – I will second.

Bryan Cleaver – I think you need to clarify though Chief if you do not mind. I am a Board member and on the committee. I think both you and Chief Westrope want to have that identified as a Fire or representative in your origination or organizations on that committee. I do not believe that I am the adequate representation if Director Rivera were to appoint me. I think that among you as the Chiefs you should decide. As I heard from Scott, he feels adequately represented and maybe you do too. Potentially Chief Heine, but I think you need to mutually agree upon whoever it is that you have representing you is that also representing the interests of the REDCOM Board.

Mark Heine - I appreciate that, so I will try again Steve. I would make the motion that the president of the REDCOM Board put forth a recommendation to Director Rivera to be appointed to the committee that is a representative of REDCOM and a Fire Service.

Jason Boaz - Second

Steve Akre – Further discussion is my thoughts on this, just to present to the Board. Was to specifically have somebody from the DOAG either the Chair or Vice Chair that have been in place for a number of years and worked on a very detailed level of policy implementation and operations for REDCOM. I think my first suggestion would be Shepley as he represents an agency that is potentially affected by Tiered Response. He would be my first and Spencer would be my alternate. I present that to the Board for their consideration and maybe a friendly amendment to that or inclusion with that motion.

Travers Collins - Steve, I am also comfortable from the Santa Rosa standpoint with our representation on the Tiered Response working group with myself and Chief Suter we are on there. I would back up your recommendation. I think that having somebody outside of Sonoma County Fire District in Santa Rosa represented because it does have a widespreading impact on whether or not they are a BLS agency in the EOA or even outside of the EOA there could be wide variations in response times and impacts to the greater system. I think having those outliers would be important as well.

Jason Boaz - I think we have a motion and a second. I personally I do not think we need to amend it with the person's name Steve. I think the motion and the second gives you the power as the president to point to that person. I appreciate just listening to the feedback, but I almost feel like it does not need to be in there or maybe should not be in the motion. We can have a separate discussion or you can just tell us who you want to appoint.

Steve Akre - Thank you, Jason. I appreciate that. If that is good, then I will leave the motion as intended. My desire is to get to extend that request to Director Rivera as soon as possible and if accepted to have our DOAG representative in place as soon as possible. With that, any further discussion.

Jason Boaz - We need to vote.

Roll call vote all in favor - Motion approve – Discussion – No Further comments – Approved unanimously

Steve Akre - Motion passes and I will craft a request to Director Rivera and include a name.

Ken Tasseff - Could you copy me the email? I will make sure she gets it as quickly as possible and flag her on a response.

Steve Akre - Absolutely Ken, thank you very much I will absolutely do that.

Ken Tasseff - Thank you

KT McNulty - Steve before we move on, I would like to talk about some impacts to REDCOM for Tiered Response or co-response as far as dispatch goes.

Steve Akre – Ok

KT McNulty – One of the major concerns or red flags that pops out to me right away is that dispatching Tiered Response or co-response means utilizing EMD in the way that it was designed and that we reached a terminate code before dispatching. REDCOM's current compliance standards are based off of the NFPA standards that are written almost 40 years ago. NFPA has recently come out I believe in December. Basically admitting those standards were not based on any kind of data or reality. Right now they did an NRFP. They put it out in December to look for a company to host a study. Right now across the nation, they have a survey in their inbox to help kind of identify data points and update those standards. I would like for the Board just to have it on your radar that we may want to re-evaluate our contract standards as they sit now. When NFPA does come out with the updated standards, update REDCOM's contract and also potentially look at utilizing EMD as designed. Meaning that you complete key guestions for those low-acuity calls before hitting send. The other piece of that is that currently the way we practice we are putting thousands of pieces of equipment on the road unnecessarily Code Three every day. Just for the alpha determinants for 2021 we put about 18,000 pieces of equipment on the road for Code two calls/ Code Three. That is something else that would be really important for us to look at. That is all I have.

Steve Akre - Ok, thank you for staying on top of that. I think you know; this is all part of what we are tasked with as policymakers on this Board, and we will certainly look at NFPA standards as they are revised and updated and make the best decisions for our communities and our levels of service. Thank you!

## 7. Old Business

a) Update on Executive Director Recruitment. - KT McNulty

KT McNulty - I cannot say a whole lot on the public forum. It is still open. We had a lot of external candidates that really had no emergency leadership experience and a lot of hospitality Directors applied. I have rejected those based on their qualification. We do have some in-house candidates. That is all the updates I can give for right now.

Steve Akre – Thank you for that update KT. I will open this up to the Board for comments, questions, and ideas. We are now looking at about four months of

not having a full-time Director in place and especially given that update. It is concerning to me. Our director position is a very critical position, and you know both providing leadership to the rest of the staff but also setting course for us as an agency and advising the Board. KT, I really appreciate your willingness and efforts to fill both spots. I do not think that is fair to you or anyone to ask that you wear multiple hats of really critical positions for an extended period of time. Opening it up to the Board for any comments, ideas, and suggestions on moving forward.

Travers Collins - How many viable applications have you received?

KT McNulty - Two

Travers Collins – Thank you.

Steve Akre - I guess I will need to provide a little bit more context or information to my comments. I am guessing what I am weighing internally as a Board member serving our member agencies. If we have gone four months already and have not even met as a subcommittee yet to review applicants. We are still at a minimum. We are looking at another couple of months, maybe longer. I guess two things, one is, are we at a point where we could appoint somebody as an acting or interim director? If we have somebody qualified to do that. Then secondly is our two candidates enough viable candidates to start the process as our subcommittee to then you know keep going?

Mark Heine – Maybe this is just a suggestion for our subcommittee to work offline with KT to get into a little bit more. We probably should not get into it too much on public forum.

KT McNulty – Yes, I agree.

Mark Heine – Any other support KT that the Board should be offering you as far as distribution or marketing or whatever we can do to help support this such a critical position. I just want all of us to be able to see a large swap of candidates with various backgrounds.

Jason Boaz – That is a great idea, Mark. I support that. It would be appropriate then for the subcommittee to just meet and discuss some of this to move forward with it quickly.

Steve Akre - I appreciate that feedback in that direction and it was just something that I did not feel comfortable just making without bringing it to the full Board for at least an update and some discussion on how we wanted to move forward together. Mark Heine - I appreciate your concern and understand what your concern is for sure. It is just one of those things that just does not have an easy solution to it right here in front of us.

Steve Akre - I think KT and Brenda have direction. If we can get the subcommittee members a meeting scheduled as soon as possible.

b) Discussion on returning to in-person/hybrid meetings beginning in October.

KT McNulty – The only information I have to share is that Santa Rosa has bookmarked a room for all the Board and DOAG meetings at the tower. We do have space to go to. It is just whether the Board feels comfortable returning to in-person meetings.

Steve Akre - Thank you KT and thank you Santa Rosa for allowing us the opportunity at least. Opening it up to the Board for any thoughts or discussion on returning to in-person and hybrid meetings in October.

Bryan Cleaver – Chair is that open to the public comment or staff comment as well as the Board?

Steve Akre- Yes

Bryan Cleaver – go ahead, Carly.

Carly Sullivan - I have been re-engaged with the COVID section within the DHS department and they clearly have stated that the EMS agency is so short-staffed that they do not want to run the risk of any one of us potentially getting COVID and then not being able to respond to an actual EOC activation or disaster activation within obviously the county structure or within the DOC structure. I think the EMS agency in general, we do not necessarily have an opinion either way, but we are going to think to consider the recommendation by the health officers and by DHS leadership that we should not commit to any in-person meetings to date. That does not mean that we cannot reconsider that thought for October. In the interim between probably now and at least August. I do not think the EMS staff can commit to doing anything. That is the latest update that I have.

Steve Akre – Thank you, Carly. I think hybrid meetings are here to stay. We have done this successfully and I think this is the perfect option for anyone that has safety concerns and time and travel concerns. Unless there is a difference in opinion on the board. I think that is the direction we should go.

Motion to approve made by Steve Akre, Second Dave Crowl – Discussion – No Further comments – Approved unanimously

- 8. <u>Next meeting will be</u> October 13, 2022, at 14:00.
- <u>Adjournment-</u> Motion to adjourn. Motion to approve made by Scott Westrope, Second, Mark Heine – Discussion – No Further comments – Approved unanimously @ 1528